
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

September 27, 2011 



CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION September 27, 2011 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
ROLL CALL: NEIL      JENSEN    FAKKEMA      
 

WASINGER       OLIVER   
    
   WALLIN    JOHNSON    
 
 
  
1. Approval of Minutes – July 26, 2011  (Page 3) 

 
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items 

not otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission 
meeting.  
 

3. SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAM UPDATE– STATUS REPORT – No action 
required (Page 6) 
Staff will brief Planning Commission on the progress thus far in updating the 
City’s Shoreline Master Program. Topics include public process to date, draft 
reports and shoreline mapping.  Staff will provide further details on the project 
and answer Planning Commission questions. 

 
4. BRIEFING ON SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND COUNTY STRATEGIC PLAN 

PROCESS – No action required (Page 10) 
Staff will brief Planning Commission on the Senior Services of Island County 
Strategic Plan Process (Vision 2022).  The Planning Commission will be asked to 
participate in a brief survey. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1



MINUTES 

 

July 26, 2011 

2



 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
July 26, 2011 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Bruce Neil, Keith Fakkema,  Jeff Wallin, Greg Wasinger and Jill 

Johnson.  Absent: Kristi Jensen and Gerry Oliver.  Staff Present:  Development 
Services Director, Steve Powers; City Engineer, Eric Johnston and Project 
Engineer, Arnie Peterschmidt. 

 
Chairman Neil called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
MINUTES: MS. FAKKEMA MOVED, MR. WASINGER SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED 

TO APPROVE THE JUNE 21, 2011 MINUTES AS PRESENTED.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  None present to comment. 
 
SIX-YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM – Public Hearing 
Mr. Peterschmidt reported that the City is required by law to submit an approved six-year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  The primary purpose of the TIP is to facilitate use 
of federal transportation funds awarded to the City.  Projects that have federal funding must 
appear in the six-year TIP at the local and state level so that the City can obligate and 
eventually use the federal funds.  Projects listed on the TIP are coordinated with those listed in 
the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  The only change this year is one 
project (Pioneer Way Improvements) listed on the previous TIP and in the Transportation 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan is under construction and is anticipated to be completed 
this fall.  Therefore the 2012-2017 TIP does not include this project. 
 
The submittal process is accomplished in conjunction with the Regional Transportation Planning 
Organization (RTPO).  Once approved by the Council, the City’s TIP is submitted to the RTPO.  
In turn, the RTPO submits a regional TIP to the State by October of each year.  The State then 
prepares a statewide TIP in January of each year.  The incorporation of the City’s projects into 
this statewide TIP is what enables us to spend federal funds on local transportation projects. 
 
Discussion 
Commissioners questioned staff about the meaning of “Functional Class” (categories according 
to how the street operates and traffic counts), want projects listed are anticipated to start (NE 7th 
Avenue improvements) and whether the County competes with the City for funding (yes). 
 
Mr. Johnston expounded on the submittal process which start with submittals from each county 
and city to the RTPO, on to the State and finally to the Federal Highway Administration for use 
on a nation-wide basis.  The major function of the TIP is to track and plan for the use of federal 
funds as they come from the Federal Highway Administration on a state-wide and national level.  
At a local level the TIP reflects the goals and policy and plans that identify projects that are 
listed in the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan as well as projects listed in the 
Capital Facilities Plan.  Our approach is consistent in that the same projects are listed in the 
Comprehensive Plan, Capital Facilities Plan and the TIP whether or not they have federal 
funding.  The TIP is largely and administrative tool to make sure that the federal money is 
applied to the right project.  
 

Planning Commission 
July 26, 2011 

Page 1 of 2 
3



 

Planning Commission 
July 26, 2011 

Page 2 of 2 

Commissioners asked if there were other transportation needs that were identified but not listed 
on the TIP.  Mr. Johnston explained that there are other transportation needs but the City is 
trying to be realistic and pragmatic as to which projects have a chance for funding and which 
projects can reasonably be accomplished within a 6-year time period and only those projects 
are listed. 
 
Mr. Powers added that there is a 6-year list and a 20-year list of projects in the Transportation 
Plan.  As becomes more obvious that a project necessary or circumstances are right to 
undertake that project it would move from the 20-year list to the 6-year Capital Facilities Plan 
and once on the Capital Facility Plan, staff would ask that that project be added to the 6-year 
Tip during the next TIP cycle.  Mr. Peterschmidt noted that the TIP can be amended at any time. 
 
Mr. Neil opened the public hearing, seeing none, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Discussion 
Commissioners asked about the Multimodal Project listed on the TIP and whether it would be 
removed since the Council had recently voted not to approve the Shoreline Substantial 
Development Permit.  Mr. Johnston said he wasn’t able say whether the project would come off 
the list until there is further direction from City Council.  Mr. Power indicated that it was staff’s 
intention to ask Council for direction at their September 6th meeting. 
 
ACTION: MR. WALLIN MOVED, MR. FAKKEMA SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT THE 2012-2017 SIX-YEAR 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM. 

 
ADJOURN:  7:49 p.m. 

4



Shoreline Master Program 

Update 

 

No Action Required 

 

5



 

Memo 
To: Members of the Planning Commission 

From: Ethan Spoo, Senior Planner 

Date: 9/21/11 

Re: Shoreline Master Program – Project Update 

PROJECT STATUS 

The Shoreline Master Program Update project continues to move forward at a brisk pace. 
Staff have given Planning Commission regular updates at the pre-meetings and will continue 
to do so in the future. 

Phase II of this five phase project is coming to a close. Phase II is the existing conditions 
portion of the project. The work product for Phase II was an “Inventory and Characterization” 
report documenting the habitat, vegetation, land use, geology, and hydrology of the City’s 
shoreline. From Phase III forward, the project will be focused on writing the new shoreline 
master program (SMP). Thus, the project is transitioning from a focus on data gathering to 
plan writing. 

Public outreach to date has included seven status briefs to the Governmental Services 
Standing Committee and three briefings to the Public Works Standing Committee. The City 
also held a public “visioning workshop” on July 20, 2011. Finally, the first meeting of the 
Shoreline Citizens Advisory Committee (SCAC) happened on July 13, 2011. The SCAC is a 
seven member committee whose role it is to review and provide comment on draft SMP 
language.  

Overall, the project remains on-schedule according to the City’s contract with AHBL. The 
consultant continues to meet or exceed staff expectations in terms of delivering work 
products on-time and on-budget. The consultant had budgeted to spend $52,279 through 
June of this year and had spent 100% of that amount. 

KEY ISSUES TO DATE 

Based on the findings of the Inventory and Characterization report and the comments 
received in the visioning workshop, staff put together a list of key project issues. These issues 

1 

6



2 

 

are meant to highlight the work done thus far and generate Planning Commission discussion 
and questions. 

• Shoreline planning is a joint city-state effort. Both the City and the state have their 
role in the development and adoption of a new SMP. The state provides grant funding 
for the update and they will review the new SMP against the state guidelines. For its 
part, the City is required to perform the leg work for the update, including the inventory, 
plan writing, and demonstrate that the plan meets the state’s requirements. After the 
plan is adopted, the City will review new development for compliance with the plan.  

• No net loss (NNL): science and art. The driving force behind the SMP update is the 
no net loss requirement that is part of state law. The City is required to demonstrate to 
the state that its shoreline plan will result in “no net loss of ecological functions.” No net 
loss is a scientific concept that requires the City and property owners who apply for 
permits to demonstrate that they have preserved the existing shoreline functions 
(habitat, vegetation, and hydrology). If the shoreline functions are impacted by new 
development, mitigation is required. 
While no net loss is a concept grounded in science, measuring it and writing plan 
policies based on no net loss is an art. The City has some degree of flexibility in how it 
will demonstrate that the new regulations will achieve no net loss. No net loss is an 
important concept for the Planning Commission to be aware of because it will drive 
future policy discussions. See Attachment A for a graphic depiction of no net loss. 

• Myths about the new SMP. The focus of the new SMP is new development and new 
construction. The baseline for no net loss is the existing shoreline condition. For this 
reason, the new SMP (although not yet written) will likely have the most impact on new 
buildings and expansions and less of an impact on maintenance activities for existing 
buildings and structures. Common myths about SMPs are that it will: (1) take away 
existing private property (2) prevent the maintenance or protection of property (3) 
require that existing homes be relocated (4) require existing uses be discontinued or 
(5) apply retroactively. 

• Ecological function and development. The Inventory and Characterization found 
that ecological function is highest, as one might suspect, in areas where little 
development has occurred such as the Seaplane Base and Freund Marsh making 
these areas good candidates for preservation/restoration of functions. Ecological 
function is lowest in developed areas of the City’s shoreline making it a good location 
for further economic development.  Shoreline regulations for vegetation, bulkheads, 
and development around critical areas can further help preserve the environment. 
Potential restoration opportunities include Freund Marsh, Maylor Point wetlands, and 
Crescent Marsh. 

• Oak Harbor has extensive public access with opportunity for improvements.  
Oak Harbor’s Waterfront Trail, Windjammer Park and Flintstone Park provide excellent 
public access to the shoreline compared to most similar-sized jurisdictions.  The City 
has plans for further improvements to public access such as resurfacing the trail, 
replacement of the bridge, posting a City parks directory map at Windjammer Park, 
and improvements to the marina. 

7



3 

 

• Concern about environmental impacts of new wastewater treatment plant. Based 
on comments received at the visioning workshop, it will be important to carefully 
consider the impacts of a new wastewater treatment plant on the shoreline 
environment. City staff from Public Works and Development Services are already 
coordinating with each other concerning the development of the new wastewater 
treatment plant and its relationship to the SMP. 

• Shoreline development best practices guidance. Attendees of the visioning 
workshop expressed a desire to obtain information about best management practices 
for shoreline development such as soft armoring, vegetated buffers, low impact 
development, etc. Staff have noted this issue for future discussions. 
 

NEXT STEPS 

Over the next 5-6 months, the SCAC will continue to meet approximately once per month to 
review drafts of the SMP goals, policies, and regulations. After the SCAC has completed their 
work, it will be forwarded on to the Planning Commission for their review and comment. 

8





Briefing on 

Senior Services of Island County 
Strategic Process 

Vision 2022 

 

No Action Required 

 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19


	09-27-11 PC Agenda w pg nos.pdf
	CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA
	PLANNING COMMISSION September 27, 2011
	ROLL CALL: NEIL      JENSEN    FAKKEMA     
	WASINGER       OLIVER  




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




